



City of Austin Fiscal Year ~~2025~~2026 Electric Tariff



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Residential Service	3
General Service.....	6
Secondary Voltage (Demand less than 10 kW)	7
Secondary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 10 kW but less than 300 kW)	7
Secondary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 300 kW).....	8
Large General Service	9
Primary Voltage (Demand less than 3,000 kW)	10
Primary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 3,000 kW and less than 20,000 kW).....	10
High Load Factor Primary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 3,000 kW and less than 20,000 kW)	11
.....	<u>11</u>
Primary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 20,000 kW).....	12
High Load Factor Primary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 20,000 kW)	13
Transmission Service	15
Transmission Voltage	16
High Load Factor Transmission Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 20 MW)	16
Lighting	18<u>19</u>
Customer-Owned, Non-Metered Lighting	18 <u>19</u>
Customer-Owned, Metered Lighting	19 <u>20</u>
City of Austin - Owned Outdoor Lighting.....	19 <u>20</u>
Service Area Lighting	19 <u>20</u>
Power Supply Adjustment.....	20<u>21</u>
Administrative Adjustment to the Power Supply Adjustment	22<u>23</u>
Community Benefit Charge	23<u>24</u>

ELECTRIC TARIFF (November 1, 2025)

Regulatory Charge	<u>2426</u>
Standby Capacity	<u>2527</u>
Rider Rate Schedules	<u>2628</u>
GreenChoice® Rider.....	<u>2729</u>
Value-of-Solar Rider.....	<u>2931</u>
Community Solar Rider	<u>3032</u>
Load Shifting Voltage Discount Rider.....	<u>3133</u>
Electric Vehicle Public Charging.....	<u>3234</u>
Pilot Programs	<u>3335</u>
Residential Service	<u>3335</u>
Time-of-Use Rate.....	<u>3436</u>
EV360 SM Plug-In Electric Vehicle Charging Subscription (This rate is closed to new customers)	<u>3436</u>
Commercial Service.....	<u>3638</u>
Fleet and Public Electric Vehicle Charging	<u>3638</u>
State of Texas Contract Service	<u>3840</u>
Solar Standard Offer Rider—Solar Integrator	<u>4042</u>
Glossary of Terms	<u>4244</u>

Residential Service

Application:

Applies to ~~all~~ electric service for domestic purposes in each individual metered residence, apartment unit, mobile home, or other residential dwelling unit as classified by City Code or Ordinance, whose point of delivery is served power at less than 12,470 volts nominal line to line (secondary voltage) located within Austin Energy's service territory.

A general ~~_~~ service rate schedule applies where a portion of the dwelling unit is used for a) conducting a business, or other non-domestic purposes, unless such use qualifies as a home occupation pursuant to City Code Chapter 25-2-900 or the dwelling unit is classified as a residential shop house under City Code or Ordinance, or b) for separately-metered uses at the same premises, including, but not limited to water wells, gates, barns, garages, boat docks, pools, and lighting.

Character of Service:

Service is provided under this rate schedule pursuant to City Code Chapter 15-9 (*Utility Service Regulations*) and the City of Austin ~~Utility~~ Utilities Criteria Manual, as both may be amended from time to time, and such other rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the City of Austin. Electric service of one standard character will be delivered to one point of service on the customer's premises and measured through one meter unless, at Austin Energy's sole discretion, additional metering is required.

Terms and Conditions:

Customers shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and allow reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes.

~~Residential~~ A residential customer's standard meter uses advanced metering technology. A customer may request a non-standard meter, which is subject to an initial set-up fee and a monthly charge, to recover Austin Energy's associated costs as provided in the *City of Austin Utility Rates and Fees Schedule* ("Smart Meter Opt-Out").

For information on other applicable rates (i.e., Power Supply Adjustment (PSA), Administrative Adjustment to the PSA, Community Benefit Charge (CBC), and Regulatory Charge), please *see* corresponding schedules in this Tariff. For definition of charges listed below, *see* "Glossary of Terms" at the back of this Tariff.

Discounts:

A rate discount is available for eligible customers under the Customer Assistance Program (CAP) ~~and~~. Residential customers are eligible for discounted electric rates and charges under CAP when residential customers receive, or reside with a household member who receives, assistance from the Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program (CEAP); Travis County Hospital District Medical Assistance Program (MAP); Supplemental Security Income Program (SSI); Medicaid; Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH); the Supplemental Nutritional Assistance Program (SNAP); the Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP); the Free & Reduced Lunch Program; federal, state, local housing/ rental assistance vouchers; the Telephone Lifeline; or such other federal, state, and local government entitlement programs that meet the 200 percent Federal Poverty Income Level (FPIL) eligibility guidelines and are approved by Austin Energy.

Eligible customers enrolled in CAP are exempt from the monthly Customer Charge and the CAP component of the Community Benefit Charge and shall receive a 10 percent bill reduction on kilowatt-hour-based charges.

Customers enrolled in the CAP, as well as other low income and disadvantaged residential customers, may be eligible for bill payment assistance through Plus 1, arrearage management and no-cost weatherization assistance.

Eligible residential customers may be automatically enrolled in CAP through a third-party matching process. Customers may also self-enroll directly with Austin Energy. For self-enrollment, the residential customer must provide documentation to establish that the customer's household currently receives at least one of the approved assistance programs or that demonstrates a household income at or below 200 percent of the FPIL guidelines.

For residential customers who are eligible for CAP based on household income at or below 200 percent of the FPIL guidelines, Austin Energy shall annually review eligibility. Upon release of certified appraisal information each year by the Travis Central Appraisal District, Austin Energy shall calculate the homesite improvement value qualification threshold by adding to the prior year's mean homesite improvement value (MHIV) a factor calculated by multiplying the prior year's MHIV by the mean of the prior five-years' annual percentage change in MHIV. In either situation, the eligible residential customer must provide sufficient information to enable Austin Energy to verify that the household income is at or below 200 percent of the FPIL guidelines.

Residential Customers will be removed from the CAP eligibility when (1) the customer's current appraisal-district homesite improvement value exceeds the qualification threshold established by Austin Energy pursuant to this schedule, and household income is greater than 200 percent of the FPIL guidelines; or (2) the customer owns two or more properties within the Austin Energy service territory, and household income is greater than 200 percent of the FPIL guidelines.

Rider Schedules:

Service under this rate schedule is eligible for application of GreenChoice® Rider, Community Solar Rider, and ~~Non-Demand~~ Value-of-Solar Rider.

~~The following basic charges and energy charges are effective for all usage on bills rendered beginning on November 1, 2023 and continuing through October 31, 2024.~~

	Inside City Limits	Outside City Limits
Basic Charges (\$/month)		
Customer	\$14.00	\$14.00
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
0—300 kWh	\$0.04088	\$0.04088
301—900 kWh	\$0.05115	\$0.04643
901—2,000 kWh	\$0.07492	\$0.06039
Over 2,000 kWh	\$0.10836	\$0.07902
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
Billed kWhs	\$0.04598	\$0.04598
Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)		
Customer Assistance Program	\$0.00242	\$0.00242
Service Area Lighting	\$0.00197	\$0.00000
Energy Efficiency Services	\$0.00349	\$0.00349

Regulatory Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWhs</i>	\$0.01374	\$0.01374

The following basic charges and energy charges are effective for all usage on bills rendered on or after November 1, ~~2024~~2025. For a residential customer who takes service under the Value of Solar rider, usage that is billable under the residential rate schedule is the sum of (1) the energy produced by the solar installation and consumed on-site, and (2) the energy delivered to the customer by Austin Energy.

	<u>Inside City Limits</u>	<u>Outside City Limits</u>
Basic Charges (\$/month)		
<i>Customer</i>	\$16.50	\$16.50

	<u>Inside City Limits</u>	<u>Outside City Limits</u>
Basic Charges (\$/month)		
<i>Customer</i>	\$15.00	\$15.00

Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>0—300 kWh</i>	\$0.04106	\$0.04106
<i>0 – 300 kWh</i>	\$0.04640	\$0.04640
<i>301 – 900 kWh</i>	\$0.05138	\$0.04664
<i>901 – 2,000 kWh</i>	\$0.07525	\$0.06066
<i>Over 2,000 kWh</i>	\$0.10884	\$0.07937

Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWhs</i>	\$0.0532204118	\$0.0532204118

Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	\$0.0044400564	\$0.0044400564
<i>Service Area Lighting</i>	\$0.0020600254	\$0.00000
<i>Energy Efficiency Services</i>	\$0.0034900457	\$0.0034900457

Regulatory Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWhs</i>	\$0.01338	\$0.01338

General Service

Application:

~~Applies to all~~ These rate schedules apply to metered, non-residential electric service delivered at less than 12,470 volts nominal line to line (or “general service”) whose point of delivery is located within the limits of Austin Energy’s service territory. General-~~service~~ rates are effective for all usage on bills rendered on or after November 1, ~~2024~~ 2025.

~~The~~ To determine a customer’s general service rate class, the months of June through September demand data will be averaged annually ~~to determine a customer’s general service rate class~~. If a customer has insufficient usage history, Austin Energy will estimate usage. Customers will be assigned to a rate class annually and will be charged the corresponding rates ~~beginning for all usage on bills rendered on or after~~ January ~~1st~~.

Character of Service:

Service is provided under general-~~service~~ rate schedules pursuant to City Code Chapter 15-9 (*Utility Service Regulations*) and the City of Austin ~~Utility~~ Utilities Criteria Manual, as both may be amended from time to time, and such other rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the City of Austin. Electric service of one standard character will be delivered to one point of service on the customer’s premises and measured through one meter unless, at Austin Energy’s sole discretion, additional metering is required.

Terms and Conditions:

Customers shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and permit reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes.

Under general-~~service~~ rate schedules with demand rates, demand charges are assessed based on monthly peak demand for power in kilowatts (kW), referred to as “Billed kW,” and shall be measured as the metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~ 15-minute interval of greatest use during the billing month as determined by Austin Energy’s metering equipment and adjusted for power factor corrections.

~~For a general service customer who takes service under the Value of Solar rider, usage that is billable under the applicable general service rate schedule is the sum of (1) the energy produced by the solar installation and consumed on-site, and (2) the energy delivered to the customer by Austin Energy.~~

When power factor during the interval of greatest use is less than 90 percent, as determined by metering equipment installed by Austin Energy, the Billed kW shall be determined by multiplying metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~ 15-minute interval of greatest use by a 90 percent power factor divided by the recorded power factor, rounded to the nearest hundredth, during the interval of greatest use. For example, the metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~ 15-minute interval of greatest monthly use is 13.5 kW, and if the power factor during the ~~fifteen~~ 15-minute interval of greatest monthly use is 86.7 percent, then Billed kW equals 14.0 kW (13.5 kW x 0.90 / 0.87 power factor).

For information on other applicable rates (*i.e.*, PSA, Administrative Adjustment to the PSA, CBC, Regulatory Charge), please *see* corresponding schedules in this Tariff. For a definition of charges listed below, *see* “Glossary of Terms” at the back of this Tariff.

Discounts:

For an independent school district, military base, or State facilities (as provided by Public Utility Regulatory Act §§ 36.351 - .354), the monthly customer-, demand-, and energy-charges under general-~~service~~ rate schedules will be discounted by 20 percent. Other electric charges are not discounted.

Rider Schedules:

Customers who take General Service are eligible for GreenChoice® Rider, Value of Solar Rider, and Load Shifting Voltage Discount Rider. Customers receiving service under Value of Solar Rider cannot combine services with Load Shifting Voltage Discount Rider.

Secondary Voltage (Demand less than 10 kW)

This rate schedule applies to a general-service customer whose average metered summer peak demand did not meet or exceed 10 kW, and unmetered small cell pole equipment attached to City of Austin property. These rates shall apply for not less than 12 months following Austin Energy's rate class determination.

“Small cell pole equipment” refers to small wireless communications equipment or distributed antenna systems used to receive or transmit radio frequencies for low-powered radio access nodes consisting of radios, radio transceivers, antennas, amplifiers, switches, repeaters, or other related component equipment. For each unmetered small cell pole equipment attached to City of Austin property, the daily billable energy consumption is 2.88 kWh per amperage (amp); therefore, to determine monthly billable energy consumption one would multiply the daily billable energy consumption by the equipment amperage rating and days in the billing month. For example, assuming a small cell pole attachment has a 5-amp equipment rating and there are 30 days in the billing month, then the monthly billable energy consumption would be 432 kWh [5 amps * 2.88 kWh * 30 days].

	Inside City Limits	Outside City Limits
Basic Charges (\$/month)		
<i>Customer</i>	\$36.41 <u>\$38.23</u>	\$36.41 <u>\$38.23</u>
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWhs</i>	\$0.02980 <u>003129</u>	\$0.02980 <u>003129</u>
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWhs</i>	\$0.05322 <u>04118</u>	\$0.05322 <u>04118</u>
Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	\$0.00187 <u>00237</u>	\$0.00187 <u>00237</u>
<i>Service Area Lighting</i>	\$0.00206 <u>00254</u>	\$0.00000
<i>Energy Efficiency Services</i>	\$0.00349 <u>00457</u>	\$0.00349 <u>00457</u>
Regulatory Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWhs</i>	\$0.01338	\$0.01338

Secondary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 10 kW but less than 300 kW)

This rate schedule applies to a general-service customer whose average metered summer peak demand met or exceeded 10 kW but did not meet or exceed 300 kW.

These rates shall apply for not less than ~~twelve~~12 months following Austin Energy's rate class determination ~~that the customer's average summer (June through September) metered peak demand level places customer in this rate class.~~ The ~~twelve~~12-month requirement may be waived by Austin Energy if a customer has made significant changes in its connected load, which prevents the customer from meeting or exceeding the minimum-metered demand threshold of this rate schedule, and Austin Energy has verified these changes.

	Inside City Limits	Outside City Limits
Basic Charges		

	<u>Inside City Limits</u>	<u>Outside City Limits</u>
Customer (\$/month)	\$57.22	\$57.22

<u>Basic Charges</u>		
<i>Customer (\$/month)</i>	<u>\$60.08</u>	<u>\$60.08</u>
Demand Charges (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	<u>\$9.3683</u>	<u>\$9.3683</u>
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	<u>\$0.0184001932</u>	<u>\$0.0184001932</u>
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	<u>\$0.0532204118</u>	<u>\$0.0532204118</u>
Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	<u>\$0.0018700237</u>	<u>\$0.0018700237</u>
<i>Service Area Lighting</i>	<u>\$0.0020600254</u>	\$0.00000
<i>Energy Efficiency Services</i>	<u>\$0.0034900457</u>	<u>\$0.0034900457</u>
Regulatory Charge (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$3.73	\$3.73

Secondary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 300 kW)

This rate schedule applies to a general-service customer whose average metered summer peak demand met or exceeded 300 kW.

These rates shall apply for not less than ~~twelve~~12 months following Austin Energy's rate class determination ~~that the customer's average summer (June through September) metered peak demand level places customer in this rate class.~~ The ~~twelve~~12-month requirement may be waived by Austin Energy if a customer has made significant changes in its connected load, which prevents the customer from meeting or exceeding the minimum-metered demand threshold of this rate schedule, and Austin Energy has verified these changes.

	<u>Inside City Limits</u>	<u>Outside City Limits</u>
<u>Basic Charges</u>		
<i>Customer (\$/month)</i>	<u>\$300.42</u>	<u>\$300.42</u>
Basic Charges		
<i>Customer (\$/month)</i>	\$286.11	\$286.11
Demand Charges (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$11.96 <u>\$12.56</u>	\$11.96 <u>\$12.56</u>
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	<u>\$0.0175201840</u>	<u>\$0.0175201840</u>
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	<u>\$0.0532204118</u>	<u>\$0.0532204118</u>
Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	<u>\$0.0018700237</u>	<u>\$0.0018700237</u>
<i>Service Area Lighting</i>	<u>\$0.0020600254</u>	\$0.00000

<i>Energy Efficiency Services</i>	\$0. 00349 <u>00457</u>	\$0. 00349 <u>00457</u>
Regulatory Charge (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$3.73	\$3.73

Large General Service

Application:

These rate schedules apply to non-residential customers who take service between 12,470 and 69,000 volts nominal line to line (or “large general service”) and whose point of delivery is located within Austin Energy’s service territory. Large general service rates are effective for all usage on bills rendered on or after November 1, ~~2024~~ 2025.

~~The~~To determine a customer’s large general service rate class, the months of June through September demand data will be averaged annually ~~to determine a customer’s large general service rate class~~. If a customer has insufficient usage history to determine the appropriate rate schedule, Austin Energy will estimate usage. Customers will be assigned annually to the appropriate large general-service class and will be charged the corresponding rates ~~beginning for all usage on bills rendered on or after~~ January ~~1st~~.

Character of Service:

Under large general-service rate schedules, service is provided pursuant to City Code Chapter 15-9 (*Utility Service Regulations*) and the City of Austin ~~Utility~~Utilities Criteria Manual, as both may be amended from time to time, and such other rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the City of Austin. Electric service of one standard character will be delivered to one point of service on the customer’s premises and measured through one meter unless, at Austin Energy’s sole discretion, additional metering is required.

Terms and Conditions:

The customer shall own, maintain, and operate all facilities and equipment on the customer’s side of the point of delivery. Customers shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and permit reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes. ~~All non-kilowatt hour charges under this schedule are unaffected by the application of any rider.~~

Under large-general service rate schedules, demand charges are assessed based on monthly peak demand for power in kilowatts (kW), referred to as “Billed kW,” and shall be measured as the metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest use during the billing month as determined by Austin Energy’s metering equipment and adjusted for power factor corrections.

For a large-general service customer who takes service under the Value of Solar rider, usage that is billable under the applicable large-general service rate schedule is the sum of (1) the energy produced by the solar installation and consumed on-site, and (2) the energy delivered to the customer by Austin Energy.

When the power factor during the interval of greatest use is less than 90 percent, as determined by metering equipment installed by Austin Energy, the Billed kW shall be determined by multiplying the metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest use by a 90 percent power factor divided by the recorded power factor, rounded to the nearest hundredth, during the interval of greatest use. For example, the metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest monthly use is 10,350 kW, and the power factor during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest monthly use is 86.7 percent; therefore, the Billed kW equals 10,707 kW (10,350 kW x 0.90 / 0.87 power factor).

For information on other rates applicable to customers who take service under a large-general service rate schedule, (i.e., PSA, Administrative Adjustment to the PSA, CBC, Regulatory Charge) please *see* corresponding schedules in this Tariff. For definitions of charges listed below, *see* “Glossary of Terms” at the back of this Tariff.

Discounts:

For independent school districts, military bases, or State facilities (as provided by Public Utility Regulatory

ELECTRIC TARIFF (November 1,

Act §§ 36.351 - .354), customer-, demand-, and energy-charges will be discounted by 20 percent.

Rider Schedules:

Customers who take large-general service are eligible for GreenChoice® Rider, Value-of-Solar Rider, and Load Shifting Voltage Discount Rider. Customers receiving service under the Value-of-Solar Rider cannot combine services with Load Shifting Voltage Discount Rider.

Primary Voltage (Demand less than 3,000 kW)

This rate schedule applies to a large general service customer whose average metered summer peak demand for power did not meet or exceed 3,000 kW. These rates shall apply for not less than 12 months following Austin Energy's rate class determination.

	<u>Inside City Limits</u>	<u>Outside City Limits</u>
<u>Basic Charges</u>		
	<u>Inside City Limits</u>	<u>Outside City Limits</u>
<u>Basic Charges</u>		
<i>Customer (\$/month)</i>	\$312.12	\$312.12
<i>Customer (\$/month)</i>	\$327.73	\$327.73
<u>Demand Charges (\$/kW)</u>		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$11.96 \$12.56	\$11.96 \$12.56
<u>Energy Charges (\$/kWh)</u>		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.0011300119	\$0.0011300119
<u>Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)</u>		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.0517704005	\$0.0517704005
<u>Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)</u>		
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	\$0.0018700237	\$0.0018700237
<i>Service Area Lighting</i>	\$0.0019900246	\$0.000000
<i>Energy Efficiency Services</i>	\$0.0033900444	\$0.0033900444
<u>Regulatory Charge (\$/kW)</u>		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$3.65	\$3.65

Primary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 3,000 kW and less than 20,000 kW)

This rate schedule applies to a large general service customer whose average metered summer peak demand met or exceeded 3,000 kW but did not meet or exceed 20,000 kW and who did not enter into a contract to take high-load factor service. These rates shall apply for not less than 12 months following Austin Energy's rate class determination.

These rates shall apply for not less than ~~twelve~~12 months following Austin Energy's determination that customer's metered peak demand level qualifies the customer to be placed in this rate class. The ~~twelve~~12-month requirement may be waived by Austin Energy if a customer has made significant changes in its connected load, which prevents the customer from meeting or exceeding the minimum-metered kW threshold of this rate schedule, and Austin Energy has verified these changes. Dual Feed Service charges are not applicable to customers who take service under this rate schedule.

	Inside City Limits	Outside City Limits
Basic Charges		
Customer (\$/month)	\$2,601.00 <u>731.05</u>	\$2,601.00 <u>731.05</u>

Demand Charges (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$14.57 <u>\$15.30</u>	\$14.57 <u>\$15.30</u>
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.0001900020	\$0.0001900020
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.0517704005	\$0.0517704005
Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	\$0.0018700237	\$0.0018700237
<i>Service Area Lighting</i>	\$0.0019900246	\$0.00000
<i>Energy Efficiency Services</i>	\$0.0033900444	\$0.0033900444
Regulatory Charge (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$3.65	\$3.65

High Load Factor Primary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 3,000 kW and less than 20,000 kW)

~~A large general service~~ customer whose average metered summer peak demand for power was greater than or equal to 3,000 kW and less than 20,000 kW and whose load ~~exhibit~~exhibited an annual average monthly load factor of at least 85 percent, may enter into a contract to take service for a multi-year term. For the duration of the contract, the customer's Base Rates will be fixed at the level shown in this tariff at the time the contract was fully executed. Average annual monthly load factor is the sum of the customer's load factor percentages for the previous ~~twelve~~12 billing months divided by ~~twelve~~12, where load factor is calculated following the definition in the "Glossary of Terms" using metered demand. Verified reductions in energy consumption made in response to a request for Emergency Response Service or another demand response program operated by ERCOT shall be credited in calculating load factor.

Contract Term:

For a term specified in the customer's contract, the customer shall enter into an exclusive sole supplier agreement to purchase its entire bundled electric service requirements for the facilities and equipment at the account service location, with an exception for on-site back-up generation and on-site renewable generation.

Minimum Bill:

The minimum monthly bill is the highest Billed kW established during the most recent 12-month billing period multiplied by the Demand Charge, in addition to any associated ~~power supply~~Power Supply Adjustment charges.

Maximum Community Benefit Charges:

During the term of a service contract, Customer Assistance Program charges shall not exceed \$200,000 per account during any calendar year (prorated for any partial year). Energy Efficiency Services charges do not apply under this rate schedule. Service Area Lighting charges do apply under this rate schedule.

Terms and Conditions:

A customer who takes service under this rate schedule is ineligible for participation in energy efficiency, retail demand response, and renewable energy incentive programs. Billed amounts due and owing shall incur a penalty of one percent per month until paid.

Dual Feed Service charges are not applicable to a customer who takes service under this rate schedule.

	Inside City Limits	Outside City Limits
Basic Charges		
<i>Customer (\$/month)</i>	\$6,553.48 <u>\$881.15</u>	\$6,553.48 <u>\$881.15</u>
Demand Charges (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$13.96 <u>\$14.66</u>	\$13.96 <u>\$14.66</u>
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.00000	\$0.00000
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.051770 <u>\$0.04005</u>	\$0.051770 <u>\$0.04005</u>
Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	\$0.001870 <u>\$0.00237</u>	\$0.001870 <u>\$0.00237</u>
Regulatory Charge (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$3.65	\$3.65

Primary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 20,000 kW)

This rate schedule applies to a large general service customer whose average metered summer peak demand for power met or exceeded 20,000 kW and who did not enter into a contract to take high-load factor service.

These rates shall apply for not less than ~~twelve~~ 12 months following Austin Energy's rate class determination ~~that customer's average summer (June through September) metered peak demand level places customer in this rate class.~~ The ~~twelve~~ 12-month requirement may be waived by Austin Energy if a customer has made significant changes in its connected load, which prevents the customer from meeting or exceeding the minimum metered kW threshold of this rate schedule and these changes have been verified by Austin Energy. Dual Feed Service charges are not applicable to a customer who takes service under this rate schedule.

	Inside City Limits	Outside City Limits
Basic Charges		
<i>Customer (\$/month)</i>	\$2,861.10 <u>\$3,004.16</u>	\$2,861.10 <u>\$3,004.16</u>
Demand Charges (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$15.47 <u>\$16.24</u>	\$15.47 <u>\$16.24</u>
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.001580 <u>\$0.00166</u>	\$0.001580 <u>\$0.00166</u>
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.051770 <u>\$0.04005</u>	\$0.051770 <u>\$0.04005</u>
Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	\$0.001870 <u>\$0.00237</u>	\$0.001870 <u>\$0.00237</u>
<i>Service Area Lighting</i>	<u>\$0.00246</u>	<u>\$0.00000</u>
<i>Energy Efficiency Services</i>	<u>\$0.00444</u>	<u>\$0.00444</u>

Service Area Lighting	\$0.00199	\$0.00000
Energy Efficiency Services	\$0.00339	\$0.00339
Regulatory Charge (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$3.65	\$3.65

High Load Factor Primary Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 20,000 kW)

~~AA large general service~~ customer whose average metered summer peak demand for power met or exceeded 20,000 kW and whose load ~~exhibit~~exhibited an annual average monthly load factor of at least 85 percent, may enter into a contract to take service for a multi-year term. For the duration of the contract, the customer's ~~Base Rates~~base rates will be fixed at the level shown in this tariff at the time the contract was fully executed. Average annual monthly load factor is the sum of the customer's load factor percentages for the previous ~~twelve~~12 billing months divided by ~~twelve~~12, where load factor is calculated following the definition in the "Glossary of Terms" using metered demand. Verified reductions in energy consumption made in response to a request for Emergency Response Service or another demand response program operated by ERCOT shall be credited in calculating load factor.

Contract Term:

For a term specified in the customer's contract, the customer shall enter into an exclusive sole supplier agreement to purchase its entire bundled electric service requirements for the facilities and equipment at the account service location, with an exception for on-site back-up generation and on-site renewable generation.

Block Power Supply Pricing:

In lieu of the Power Supply Adjustment, the customer's service contract may provide a fixed power supply charge for a monthly block quantity of energy for a defined term, based on the cost of wholesale power market prices. If a customer exercises this option, the customer must purchase one or more forward supply contracts for a minimum twelve (12) consecutive month term. Block pricing shall not apply to a period longer than five (5) years. Block pricing is contingent on the availability of authorized funding and the customer's satisfaction of credit requirements. All billed energy not subject to block pricing is subject to the Power Supply Adjustment (or GreenChoice®Rider), as may be amended from time to time, or any other successor power-supply adjustment rate schedules.

The kWh block price shall be the actual wholesale kWh cost to Austin Energy of the block quantity supplied, plus a renewable portfolio charge based upon the forecast kWh price of renewable energy credits in the ERCOT market during the term of the block pricing.

In lieu of the renewable portfolio charge, the customer may opt to designate an equal renewable portfolio dollar value as a monthly block quantity of GreenChoice® energy by paying the per-kWh price difference between the wholesale power price paid by Austin Energy and the applicable GreenChoice® Charge for the specified quantity.

The fixed quantity, block price, and related terms shall be separately executed and set forth in a term sheet. Upon execution of a term sheet by parties no later than five (5) business days prior to a customer's desired start date for the purchase, Austin Energy shall be authorized to purchase the contract quantity for a customer according to the term sheet. All other pricing, charges, and fees shall be billed as set forth in a given schedule. Austin Energy's execution of a term sheet does not constitute a guarantee that the fixed contract quantity will be available at the price stated therein, and Austin Energy has no liability to a customer for failure to execute any forward supply contract.

At the time a term sheet is executed, a customer's pro rata share of the Power Supply Adjustment, including administrative adjustments, will be trued up. The true-up amount is the customer's proportionate share of the current surplus or deficit of Austin Energy power supply revenues or costs calculated through the day preceding the date the term sheet takes effect. For the purpose of the true-up, power supply costs will be allocated to the customer following the allocation methodologies that were used to determine the PSA charges in effect at the time the term sheet is executed. In the event costs exceed revenues, the under-recovery amount attributable to customer will be surcharged to customer. In the event revenues exceed costs, the over-recovery amount will be credited to customer. All energy received by the customer in excess or in the absence of a fixed contract quantity shall be billed in accordance with the Schedule. All Block Price purchases are subject to the Renewable Offtake Agreement Option terms in the Power Supply Adjustment section of Austin Energy's then-effective tariff.

Minimum Bill:

The minimum monthly bill is the highest Billed kW established during the most recent 12-month billing period multiplied by the Demand Charge, in addition to any associated fuel, power supply, or block pricing charges.

Maximum Community Benefit Charges:

During the term of a service contract, Customer Assistance Program charges shall not exceed \$200,000 during any calendar year (prorated for any partial year). Charges for Service Area Lighting and Energy Efficiency Services do not apply under this rate schedule.

Terms and Conditions:

A customer who takes service under this rate schedule is ineligible for participation in energy efficiency, retail demand response, and renewable energy incentive programs. Billed amounts due and owing shall incur a penalty of one percent per month until paid.

Dual Feed Service charges are not applicable to a customer who takes service under this rate schedule.

Basic Charges	
<i>Customer (\$/month)</i>	\$20,808.00 <u>\$21,848.40</u>
Demand Charges (\$/kW)	
<i>Billed kW</i> s	\$14.99 <u>\$15.74</u>
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)	
<i>Billed kWh</i> s	\$0.00000
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)	
<i>Billed kWh</i> s	\$0.051770 <u>4005</u>
Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)	
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	\$0.001870 <u>0237</u>
Regulatory Charge (\$/kW)	
<i>Billed kW</i> s	\$3.65

Transmission Service

Application:

~~This~~These rate ~~schedule-applie~~schedules apply to electric service at 69,000 volts or above nominal line to line, and whose point of delivery is located within the limits of Austin Energy's service territory. The rate tables below reflect rates that are effective for all usage on bills rendered on or after November 1, ~~2024~~ 2025.

Character of Service:

Service is provided under ~~this~~these rate ~~schedules~~schedules pursuant to City Code Chapter 15-9 (*Utility Service Regulations*) and the City of Austin ~~Utility~~Utilities Criteria Manual, as both may be amended from time to time, and such other rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the City of Austin. Electric service of one standard character will be delivered to one point of service on the customer's premises and measured through one meter unless, at Austin Energy's sole discretion, additional metering is required.

Terms and Conditions:

The customer shall own, maintain, and operate all facilities and equipment on the customer's side of the point of delivery. Customers shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and permit reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes.

Under transmission-service rate schedules, demand charges are assessed based on monthly peak demand for power in kilowatts (kW), referred to as "Billed kW," and shall be measured as the metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest use during the billing month as determined by Austin Energy's metering equipment, adjusted for power factor corrections.

When the power factor during the interval of greatest use is less than 90 percent, as determined by metering equipment installed by Austin Energy, the Billed kW shall be determined by multiplying metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest use by a 90 percent power factor divided by the recorded power factor, rounded to the nearest hundredth, during the interval of greatest use. For example, if the metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest monthly use is 31,000 kW, and the power factor during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest monthly use is 86.7 percent; therefore, the Billed kW equals 32,068 kW (31,000 kW x 0.90 / 0.87 power factor).

For information on other applicable rates charges (i.e., PSA, Administrative Adjustment to the PSA, CBC, Regulatory Charge) please *see* corresponding schedules in this tariff (if applicable). For definition of charges listed below, *see* "Glossary of Terms" in this Tariff.

Discounts:

For an independent school district, military base, or State facilities (as provided by Public Utility Regulatory Act §§ 36.351 - .354), the monthly customer-, demand-, and energy-charges under transmission-service rate schedules will be discounted by 20 percent.

Rider Schedules:

Service under this rate schedule is eligible for application of the GreenChoice® Rider and Load Shifting Voltage Discount Rider.

Transmission Voltage

	Inside City Limits	Outside City Limits
Basic Charges		
<i>Customer (\$/month)</i>	\$3,641.40 <u>823.47</u>	\$3,641.40 <u>823.47</u>
Demand Charges (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$13.53 <u>\$14.21</u>	\$13.53 <u>\$14.21</u>
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.003570 <u>00375</u>	\$0.003570 <u>00375</u>
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.051120 <u>3956</u>	\$0.051120 <u>3956</u>
Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	\$0.001870 <u>00237</u>	\$0.001870 <u>00237</u>
<i>Service Area Lighting</i>	\$0.001970 <u>00243</u>	\$0.00000
<i>Energy Efficiency Services</i>	\$0.003350 <u>00438</u>	\$0.003350 <u>00438</u>
Regulatory Charge (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$3.61	\$3.61

High Load Factor Transmission Voltage (Demand greater than or equal to 20 MW)

A customer who takes service at 69,000 volts or above nominal line to line, whose average metered summer peak demand for power met or exceeded 20,000 kW, and whose load ~~exhibit~~exhibited an annual average monthly load factor of at least 85 percent, may enter into a contract to take service for a multi-year term. For the duration of the contract, the customer's ~~Base Rates~~base rates will be fixed at the level shown in this tariff at the time the contract was fully executed. Average annual monthly load factor is the sum of the customer's load factor percentages for the previous ~~twelve~~12 billing months divided by ~~twelve~~12, where load factor is calculated following the definition in the "Glossary of Terms" using metered demand. Verified reductions in energy consumption made in response to a request for Emergency Response Service or another demand response program operated by ERCOT shall be credited in calculating load factor.

Contract Term:

For a term specified in the customer's contract, the customer shall enter into an exclusive sole supplier agreement to purchase its entire bundled electric service requirements for the facilities and equipment at the account service location, with an exception for on-site back-up generation and on-site renewable generation.

Block Power Supply Pricing:

In lieu of the Power Supply Adjustment, the customer's service contract may provide a fixed power supply charge for a monthly block quantity of energy for a defined term, based on the cost of wholesale power market prices. If a customer exercises this option, the customer must purchase one or more forward supply contracts for a minimum twelve (12) consecutive month term. Block pricing shall not apply to a period longer than five (5) years. Block pricing is contingent on the availability of authorized funding and the customer's satisfaction of credit requirements. All billed energy not subject to block pricing is subject to the variable

Power Supply Adjustment (or GreenChoice®Rider), as may be amended from time to time, or any other successor power-supply related rate schedules.

The kWh block price shall be the actual wholesale kWh cost to Austin Energy of the block quantity supplied, plus a renewable portfolio charge based upon the forecast kWh price of renewable energy credits in the ERCOT market during the term of the block pricing.

In lieu of the renewable portfolio charge, the customer may opt to designate an equal renewable portfolio dollar value as a monthly block quantity of GreenChoice® energy by paying the per-kWh price difference between the wholesale power price paid by Austin Energy and the applicable GreenChoice® Charge for the specified quantity.

The fixed quantity, block price, and related terms shall be separately executed and set forth in a term sheet. Upon execution of a term sheet by parties no later than five (5) business days prior to a customer's desired start date for the purchase, Austin Energy shall be authorized to purchase the contract quantity for a customer according to the term sheet. All other pricing, charges, and fees shall be billed as set forth in a given schedule. Austin Energy's execution of a term sheet does not constitute a guarantee that the fixed contract quantity will be available at the price stated therein, and Austin Energy has no liability to a customer for failure to execute any forward supply contract.

At the time a term sheet is executed, a customer's pro rata share of the Power Supply Adjustment, including administrative adjustments, will be trued up. The true-up amount is the customer's proportionate share of the current surplus or deficit of Austin Energy power supply revenues or costs calculated through the day preceding the date the term sheet takes effect. For the purpose of the true-up, power supply costs will be allocated to the customer following the allocation methodologies that were used to determine the PSA charges in effect at the time the term sheet is executed. In the event costs exceed revenues, the under-recovery amount attributable to customer will be surcharged to customer. In the event revenues exceed costs, the over-recovery amount will be credited to customer. All energy received by the customer in excess or in the absence of a fixed contract quantity shall be billed in accordance with the Schedule. All Block Price purchases are subject to the Renewable Offtake Agreement Option terms in the Power Supply Adjustment section of Austin Energy's then-effective tariff.

Minimum Bill:

The minimum monthly bill is the highest Billed kW established during the most recent 12-month billing period multiplied by the Demand Charge, in addition to any associated fuel, power supply, or block pricing charges.

Maximum Community Benefit Charges:

During the term of a service contract, Customer Assistance Program charges shall not exceed \$200,000 during any calendar year (prorated for any partial year). Charges for Service Area Lighting and Energy Efficiency Services do not apply under this rate schedule.

Terms and Conditions:

A customer who takes service under this rate schedule is ineligible for participation in energy efficiency, retail demand response, and renewable energy incentive programs.

Billed amounts due and owing shall incur a penalty of one percent per month until paid.

Basic Charges

Customer (\$/month)

~~\$20,808.00~~ \$21,848.40

Demand Charges (\$/kW)

Billed kW ~~\$11.52~~ \$12.10

Energy Charges (\$/kWh)

Billed kWh \$0.00000

Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)

Billed kWh \$0.~~051120~~3956

Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)

Customer Assistance Program \$0.~~0018700~~237

Regulatory Charge (\$/kW)

Billed kW \$3.61

Lighting

Application:

These rates apply to customers who take service under the lighting rate schedules shown below. For non-metered lighting accounts, the supply of electricity is determined by the number of hours of operation. The rate tables below reflect rates that are effective for all usage on bills rendered on or after November 1, ~~2024~~ 2025.

Character of Service:

Service is provided under these rate schedules pursuant to City Code Chapter 15-9 (*Utility Service Regulations*) and the City of Austin ~~Utility~~Utilities Criteria Manual, as both may be amended from time to time, and such other rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the City of Austin. Electric service of one standard character will be delivered to one point of service on the customer's premises and measured through one meter unless, at Austin Energy's sole discretion, additional metering is required, or the lighting service is unmetered.

Terms and Conditions:

Under metered lighting service, customers shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and permit reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes.

For information on other applicable charges (i.e., PSA, CBC, Regulatory Charge), please *see* corresponding schedules in this tariff (if applicable). For definition of charges listed below, *see* "Glossary of Terms" in this Tariff.

Discounts:

For an independent school district, military base, or State facility (as provided by Public Utility Regulatory Act §§ 36.351 - .354), the monthly customer-, demand-, and energy-charges under lighting rate schedules will be discounted by 20 percent.

Rider Schedules:

Service under these rate schedules is eligible for application of the GreenChoice® Rider.

Customer-Owned, Non-Metered Lighting

~~These rates apply.~~ This rate schedule applies to non-metered electric service provided to the Texas Department of Transportation for sign lighting and safety illumination.

Energy Charges (\$/kWh)	
<i>Billed kWhs</i>	\$0.03025 <u>03176</u>
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)	
<i>Billed kWhs</i>	\$0.05322 <u>04118</u>

Customer-Owned, Metered Lighting

~~These rates apply~~This rate schedule applies to electric service to metered athletic field accounts whose connected load is more than 85 percent attributable to lighting, as verified by Austin Energy.

Basic Charges (\$/month)	
Customer	\$15.61 <u>\$16.39</u>
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)	
Billed kWhs	\$0.07945 <u>\$0.08342</u>
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)	
Billed kWhs	\$0.05322 <u>\$0.04118</u>

City of Austin - Owned Outdoor Lighting

These rates apply to electric service to non-metered outdoor lighting owned and operated by the City of Austin other than Service Area Lighting. "Billed kWh" will be used for the purpose of determining PSA charges.

Fixture Charges (\$/fixture/month)	
100 Watt or Less (Billed 35 kWh)	\$9.68 <u>\$10.16</u>
101 - 175 Watt (Billed 60 kWh)	\$16.54 <u>\$17.37</u>
176 - 250 Watt (Billed 90 kWh)	\$24.87 <u>\$26.11</u>
251 Watt or Greater (Billed 140 kWh)	\$38.70 <u>\$40.64</u>
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)	
Billed kWhs	\$0.05322 <u>\$0.04118</u>

Service Area Lighting

These rates apply to electric service for illumination and the operation of traffic signals on all public streets, highways, expressways, or thoroughfares; other than non-metered lighting maintained by the Texas Department of Transportation. Revenues received through the Service Area Lighting component of the Community Benefit Charge are applied to offset these charges inside the City of Austin.

	Inside City Limits	Outside City Limits
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
Billed kWhs	\$0.44325 <u>\$0.46541</u>	\$0.24678 <u>\$0.25912</u>
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
Billed kWhs	\$0.05322 <u>\$0.04118</u>	\$0.05322 <u>\$0.04118</u>

Power Supply Adjustment Charge

Application:

Applies to electric service whose point of delivery is located within Austin Energy's service territory, unless otherwise stated. The rates are effective for all usage on bills rendered on or after November 1, 2024 2025.

Character of Service:

The Power Supply Adjustment (PSA) is established ~~based on the preceding year's costs for the items listed in this Tariff "PSA Costs")~~. ~~The PSA is designed to recover Austin Energy's ongoing PSA Costs power supply costs, which include costs~~ for:

- ERCOT power-supply related charges and credits, other than ERCOT Administrative Fees;
- Fuel Costs – costs for fuel, fuel transportation, and hedging gains and losses.
- Net Purchased Power Agreement Costs – costs and offsetting revenues (such as, bilateral sales and GreenChoice) associated with short- and long-term purchased power agreements, and costs for distributed generation production.
- Known and measurable adjustments to the preceding year's costs; and,
- Other one-time, non-recurring amounts related to PSA costs.

Austin Energy may ~~request that the City Council~~ restrict PSA revenues to fund the Power Supply Rate Stabilization Reserve consistent with Austin Energy's financial policies.

~~As part of the City of Austin's annual budgeting process, which includes a public hearing, the PSA is determined by calculating the sum of Austin Energy's net power supply costs divided by its historical twelve-month kilowatt-hour sales, plus a portion of existing over- or under-recovery of PSA Costs, divided by projected service territory sales. This results in an annual uniform system rate per kWh that is adjusted for voltage level and applied to each rate class. At least once each year, the City Manager will publicly present a report to the City Council that provides the underlying calculations for the PSA by system voltage level. The PSA Cost calculation will break out Fuel Costs, ERCOT Settlements, and Net Purchased Power Agreement Costs; it will also show the extent of over- or under-recovery of PSA Costs for the previous twelve months.~~

Austin Energy has administrative authority to adjust the currently effective PSA rates, including any currently effective administrative adjustments, by an amount not to exceed plus or minus five percent of the sum of existing PSA rates and existing administrative adjustments. The Administrative Adjustment to the PSA is set forth in rate schedule Administrative Adjustment to the Power Supply Adjustment. Within 14 days of any ~~Administrative Adjustment~~ administrative adjustment of the PSA, Austin Energy will provide a written report to City Council on the status of the PSA and the City Manager will notify City Council on changes to the PSA and any over- or under-recovery by system voltage level. Austin Energy will post notice of the adjustment on its website and update the rates in rate schedule Administrative Adjustment to the Power Supply Adjustment. If it is determined that adjustment(s) of the plus or minus five percent is insufficient, Austin Energy will request City Council action to address further changes to the PSA. ~~Austin Energy will provide monthly written reports to City Council on the status of the PSA and any over- or under-recovery.~~

The PSA rates by voltage level are:

Voltage Level	Adjustment Factor	Power Supply Rate (\$/kWh)
System Average	1.0000	\$0. 0528704091
Secondary	1.0067	\$0. 0532204118
Primary	0.9791	\$0. 0517704005
Transmission	0.9669	\$0. 0511203956

Renewable Offtake Agreement Option:

Subject to market availability, qualifying customers may enter ~~into~~ a contract with Austin Energy to purchase ~~and receive~~ renewable energy and associated renewable energy credits, backed by a renewable power purchase agreement (RPPA) between Austin Energy and a third-party generator for a specified megawatt-hour (MWh) amount. The customer's PSA charges will be adjusted by Austin Energy's ERCOT-settled net financial gains and losses from the RPPA, calculated using the positive or negative difference between the RPPA MWh price and settled nodal price for each generated MWh, for the contracted amount in the month following ERCOT settlement. In the event an adjustment would reduce the PSA charge to below zero in a given month, the negative amount will be carried forward as a credit to be applied to future PSA charges. Austin Energy will retire any associated RECs on the customer's behalf.

To qualify for an RPPA-backed contract, the customer shall (1) maintain during the contract term an average monthly billed demand of at least 75,000 kW and an average annual load factor of at least 85 percent, (2) enter into a contract with a minimum of a one-year term, and (3) have (or provide through an affiliate guarantee) a creditworthiness no lower than a rating of BBB- by Standard & Poor's Rating Group or Baa2 by Moody's Investor Services, Inc., or provide other appropriate security backed by a qualified financial institution as approved by Austin Energy.

With respect to renewable contracts, additional contract terms and conditions, related ~~OSE~~Qualified Scheduling Entity and other fees, financial security requirements, and other matters shall be determined by Austin Energy.

Administrative Adjustment to the Power Supply Adjustment

Description:

~~Exercising authority granted to Austin Energy pursuant to City of Austin Electric Tariff Ordinance No. 20221013-049,~~ Austin Energy administratively sets the rates under this Tariff.

Application:

Applies to all electric service whose point of delivery is located within the limits of Austin Energy's service territory, unless otherwise stated.

For each voltage level, the Administrative Adjustment to the Power Supply Adjustment rates will be published below:

Voltage Level	Line Loss Adjustment Factor	Rate (\$/kWh)
<i>System Average</i>	1.0000	-\$ \$0.0119600000
<i>Secondary</i>	1.0067	-\$ \$0.0120400000
<i>Primary</i>	0.9791	-\$ \$0.0117200000
<i>Transmission</i>	0.9669	-\$ \$0.0115600000

Community Benefit Charge

Application:

This rate schedule applies to ~~all~~ electric service whose point of delivery is located within Austin Energy's service territory, unless otherwise stated. The rates are effective for all usage on bills rendered on or after November 1, 2024 2025.

Character of Service:

The Community Benefit Charge (CBC) recovers program costs incurred by ~~the utility~~ Austin Energy on behalf of ~~Austin Energy's service area~~ customers and the greater community. The ~~charges~~ rates under this rate schedule are determined through the City budget process and applied by system voltage level. The costs of the following programs are included in the Community Benefit Charge:

1. The Service Area Lighting (SAL) component of the CBC recovers the cost of street lighting (other than lighting maintained by Texas Dept. of Transportation), the operation of traffic signals located inside Austin Energy's service territory, and certain lights owned by the City of Austin and operated on behalf of the City's Parks and Recreation Department. Customers whose point of delivery is located outside the city limits of Austin are not subject to the Service Area Lighting component of the Community Benefit Charge. The SAL charge includes transfers resulting from recovery of the charges comprising SAL.
2. The Energy Efficiency Services (EES) component of the CBC recovers the cost of energy efficiency ~~programs, including rebates and related costs, solar incentives, and the~~ Green Building program, demand response, and customer-sited battery programs, or similar customer demand-side programs offered by Austin Energy ~~throughout its service area including rebates and all related costs.~~ The EES charge includes transfers resulting from recovery of the charges comprising EES.
3. The Customer Assistance Program (CAP) component of the CBC funds projects that help qualifying low-income and other disadvantaged residential customers through bill discounts, payment assistance (Plus 1), arrearage management, and weatherization services. The CAP component of the Community Benefit Charge contributes to the funding of the CAP program. ~~and unexpended and re-appropriated funds.~~

With Council approval, CAP program funds unspent at the end of a fiscal year shall be rolled over to the next fiscal year's budget for the CAP program.

Rate Schedules	Service Area Lighting	Energy Efficiency Services	Customer Assistance Program
Secondary Voltage (Residential) (\$/kWh)			
<i>Inside City Limits</i>	\$0. 0020600254	\$0. 0034900457	\$0. 0044400564
<i>Outside City Limits</i>	\$0.00000	\$0. 0034900457	\$0. 0044400564
Secondary Voltage (Non-Residential) (\$/kWh)			
<i>Inside City Limits</i>	\$0. 0020600254	\$0. 0034900457	\$0. 0018700237
<i>Outside City Limits</i>	\$0.00000	\$0. 0034900457	\$0. 0018700237
Primary Voltage (\$/kWh)			
<i>Inside City Limits</i>	\$0. 0019900246	\$0. 0033900444	\$0. 0018700237
<i>Outside City Limits</i>	\$0.00000	\$0. 0033900444	\$0. 0018700237
Transmission Voltage (\$/kWh)			
<i>Inside City Limits</i>	\$0. 0019700243	\$0. 0033500438	\$0. 0018700237
<i>Outside City Limits</i>	\$0.00000	\$0. 0033500438	\$0. 0018700237

Primary and Transmission Voltage Contracts @ 85% aLF (\$/kWh)			
Inside City Limits	\$0.00000	\$0.00000	\$0. 00187 <u>00237</u>
Outside City Limits	\$0.00000	\$0.00000	\$0. 00187 <u>00237</u>

Regulatory Charge

Application:

~~Applies to all~~ This rate schedule applies to electric service whose point of delivery is located within the limits of Austin Energy's service territory, unless otherwise stated. The rates for this pass-through charge are effective for all usage on bills rendered on or after November 1, ~~2022-2025~~.

Character of Service:

The Regulatory Charge recovers 1) ERCOT transmission service charges ~~and, net of related~~ credits; 2) North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) and Texas Reliability Entity (TRE) regulatory fees and penalties; 3) the ERCOT Nodal and Administrative Fees; and 4) other ~~material~~ regulatory fees or penalties specific to the electric industry. The Regulatory Charge includes transfers resulting from recovery of this rate. For customers charged demand rates as a component of base-rate design, the Regulatory Charge is assessed on a demand basis, adjusted for line losses. For customers not billed demand rates as a component of base-rate design, the Regulatory Charge is assessed on an energy basis, adjusted for line losses. The Regulatory Charge may be adjusted to eliminate any over- or under-recovery under the Regulatory Charge. Changes to the Regulatory Charge shall be determined after notice and public hearing as required by City code.

Voltage Level	Regulatory (Energy) (\$/kWh)	Regulatory (Demand) (\$/kW)
<i>Secondary</i>	\$0.01338 (or)	\$3.73
<i>Secondary – State Contract Rate</i>	N/A	\$3.75
<i>Primary</i>	N/A	\$3.65
<i>Primary – State Contract Rate</i>	N/A	\$3.67
<i>Transmission</i>	N/A	\$3.61

Standby Capacity

Application:

This rate schedule applies to a customer who has entered into a contract for standby capacity provided by Austin Energy and whose point of delivery is located within Austin Energy's service territory.

Character of Service:

Under this rate schedule, service is provided pursuant to City Code Chapter 15-9 (*Utility Service Regulations*) and the City of Austin ~~Utility~~Utilities Criteria Manual, as both may be amended from time to time, and such other rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the City of Austin. Electric service of one standard character will be delivered to one point of service on the customer's premises and measured through one meter unless, at Austin Energy's sole discretion, additional metering is required.

Terms and Conditions:

Customers shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and permit reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes.

The ~~Standby Capacity will be~~level of standby capacity provided under this rate schedule is the level stipulated in the contract between Austin Energy and the customer: (Standby Capacity). If during any scheduled or unscheduled outage, the customer exceeds ~~the contracted amount of~~ Standby Capacity, the capacity for billing Standby Capacity Service will be increased to the actual amount for the next ~~twelve~~12 months. After ~~twelve~~12 months billing at the new capacity level, the capacity for billing Standby Capacity Service will be reduced to the original contracted amount.

Customer will be assessed a monthly bill equal to the Standby Capacity Rate ~~times~~multiplied by the Standby Capacity.

Voltage Level	Monthly Standby Capacity Rate (\$/kW)
<i>Primary</i>	\$2.86 <u>\$3.00</u>
<i>Transmission</i>	\$2.65 <u>\$2.78</u>

For months where the customer takes power from Austin Energy, monthly billing for power will be at the underlying rates within the standard rate schedules for which the customer's load and voltage would qualify for that month, including all applicable riders. Such monthly billing will also include the charges for Standby Capacity as described above.

Rider Rate Schedules

Application:

The rider rate schedules that follow apply to electric service whose point of delivery is located within Austin Energy's service territory.

Character of Service:

Service is provided under these rate schedules pursuant to City Code Chapter 15-9 (*Utility Service Regulations*) and the City of Austin ~~Utility~~Utilities Criteria Manual, as both may be amended from time to time, and such other rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the City of Austin. Electric service of one standard character will be delivered to one point of service on the customer's premises and measured through one meter unless, at Austin Energy's sole discretion, additional metering is required.

Terms and Conditions:

Customers shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and permit reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes.

For definition of charges listed below, *see* "Glossary of Terms" at the back of this tariff.

GreenChoice® Rider

~~Subscriptions under the-~~
Austin Energy's GreenChoice® program support Austin Energy's inclusion of provides customers with access to renewable fuel sources in its power generation portfolio. energy generated from within the ERCOT electric grid. Austin Energy customers may voluntarily subscribe to the utility's GreenChoice® program. Energy acquired or produced by Austin Energy cannot be directed to any one a particular destination on the ERCOT electric grid, including to a participant's premises. For participating customers, Austin Energy allocates and retires Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) from solar assets to match a customer's subscribed usage. GreenChoice charges and billing language depends on the plan type in which a customer is enrolled. Under the GreenChoice® program, subscriber contributions support Austin Energy's purchases of power from renewable sources, which increases renewable power as a share of Austin Energy's overall generation mix. Support for renewable power is consistent with the community value of environmental stewardship.

Application:

This rider applies to the power-supply component of the electric service provided to a customer subscribed to the City of Austin's GreenChoice® program. Subscription is available on a first-come, first-served basis, until the program is fully subscribed. Once fully subscribed, no new customers will be allowed to take service under this rider until additional renewable capacity is obtained, or if existing program capacity becomes available. If the program is open to subscribers, a customer may complete a GreenChoice® enrollment request form on Austin Energy's website. If the program is not open to subscribers, a customer may complete the form to be added to the program's waitlist.

Terms and Conditions:

~~A-~~

Under the program, a customer's subscription follows the customer's account must be without regard to the location where the customer takes electric service from Austin Energy. Customers receiving service under the Community Solar Rider cannot combine services with the GreenChoice® Rider.

Program options:

Under the GreenChoice® program, the following options are currently open to new subscribers:

Residential SmartCents - This program is open to residential accounts in good standing. In addition, some subscriptions allow for the qualification of accolades. If in the event of a conflict with this rider, the terms Enrollment applies to 100 percent of energy consumption. Subscribers pay the usual Power Supply Adjustment charges plus an additional GreenChoice® charge of a subscription \$0.0075 (3/4 of one penny) per kilowatt-hour (kWh). There is no contract in effect shall prevail. The General Manager of Austin Energy shall develop the, expiration date, or penalty for unsubscribing. Customers may unsubscribe at any time; however, a customer who unsubscribes may not re-subscribe for GreenChoice® Rider for a period of 12 months.

Commercial BusinessCents - This program is open to commercial accounts in good standing. Enrollment applies to 100 percent of energy consumption. Subscribers pay the usual Power Supply Adjustment charges plus an additional GreenChoice® charge of \$0.0075 (3/4 of one penny) per kilowatt-hour (kWh). There is no contract terms and conditions for subscriptions, expiration date, or penalty for unsubscribing. Customers may unsubscribe at any time; however, a customer who unsubscribes may not re-subscribe for GreenChoice® Rider for a period of 12 months.

~~Unless otherwise specified in a~~

Commercial Energizer - This program is open to commercial accounts in good standing. Enrollment applies to 100 percent of energy consumption. Subscribers pay the usual Power Supply Adjustment charges plus an additional GreenChoice® charge of \$0.0075 (3/4 of one penny) per kilowatt-hour (kWh). Subscribers must sign a one-year subscription contract in effect on September 30, 2013, for Batches 5 or 6 subscriptions,

ELECTRIC TARIFF (November 1,

~~the GreenChoice® Charges will be applied to 100 percent of the customer's energy usage through the Batch's end date. Batches 5 and 6 are closed to additional subscriptions.~~

~~For Residential SmartCents or Commercial BusinessCents subscriptions, the GreenChoice® Charges will be applied to 100 percent of the customer's energy usage. Both SmartCents and BusinessCents are non-contract subscriptions with no penalty for unsubscribing.~~

~~. Subscribers may~~

~~For Commercial Energizer subscription, the GreenChoice® Charge will be applied to 100 percent of the customer's energy usage. Energizer is a 12-month contract subscription that converts a month-to-month subscription after the contract's end date; after this term expiration the customer may re-subscribe to a new subscription product.~~

~~For all Commercial Patron 15, 17, or 20 subscriptions, the GreenChoice® Charges will be applied to each customer's account for a specified amount of energy usage of at least 100,000 kilowatt-hours per billing month, up to 100 percent of the customer's energy usage. Any commercial customer is eligible with a minimum of 1.2 MWh annual load on one or a combination of accounts. Patron subscriptions are written contracts with specific terms and end dates at a fixed charge; after the expiration the customer may re-subscribe to a new subscription product. Customers may not unsubscribe from the program at any time prior to the expiration of their contract. Upon contract expiration, subscribers will continue to be enrolled month-to-month until unenrollment is requested and processed, or the account is terminated.~~

~~Commercial Patron 23 - This program is open to commercial accounts in good standing. Enrollment applies to 100 percent of account usage. Subscribers pay the usual Power Supply Adjustment charges plus an additional GreenChoice® charge of \$0.005 (1/2 of one penny) per kilowatt-hour (kWh). Subscribers must sign a five-year subscription contract. Subscribers may not unsubscribe from the program at any time prior to the expiration of their contract. Upon contract expiration, subscribers will automatically be unenrolled.~~

~~Under the GreenChoice® program, the following options are active for existing subscribers but are closed to new subscribers:~~

~~Commercial Patron 20 (100 percent usage and block/fixed options)~~

Terms and Conditions:

GreenChoice® Charges:

~~While subscribed to To be eligible for the GreenChoice® program, a customer will be billed GreenChoice® Charge in lieu of the Power Supply Adjustment that would otherwise apply to the customer's subscribed account must be in good standing. In addition, under the Energizer and Patron programs renewable energy usage, unless otherwise noted increments received count towards AE Green Building ratings, LEED certification, EPA Green Power Partner program certification, and the City of Austin's Green Business Leader certification.~~

GreenChoice® Charges:

~~For Residential SmartCents and Commercial Patron subscribers, the appropriate rate schedule PSA, PSA Administrative Adjustment, and GreenChoice® charges appear as separate line items on utility bills.~~

For *BusinessCents* and *Energizer* subscribers, the PSA and GreenChoice® charges are combined on the subscriber's utility bill under the name "GreenChoice [plan type]," and the PSA Administrative Adjustment charge is placed under the name "GreenChoice [plan type] Administrative Adjustment."

Subscription Type	GreenChoice® Charges (\$/kWh)
Effective Date January 1, 2017	
<i>Residential SmartCents (No Contract)</i>	PSA amount plus \$0.00750
<i>Commercial BusinessCents (No Contract)</i>	PSA amount plus \$0.00750
<i>Commercial Energizer (12-Month 1-Year Contract)</i>	PSA amount plus \$0.00750
<i>Commercial Patron 20 (5-Year Contract)</i>	This rate program is closed to new customers, existing . Existing customers are billed under the contract terms.
<i>Commercial Patron <u>23</u> (5-Year Contract)</i>	PSA amount plus \$0.00500

Value-of-Solar Rider

Application:

Applies to ~~any~~an electric service account, excluding transmission voltage and lighting accounts, that has an on-site solar photovoltaic system that has a capacity less than 10,000 kW ~~–æ alternating current as measured at the inverter’s output,~~ interconnected with Austin Energy’s distribution system behind the ~~master~~ meter (“Solar Customer”); or, customers recognized by Austin Energy as a “Shared Solar Customer” where an assigned portion of metered solar production from a designated on-site photovoltaic system is allocated to the Shared Solar Customer’s account.

For the Shared Solar program, guidelines and other information can be found at the program’s page on Austin Energy’s website.

Terms and Conditions:

~~Billable kilowatt hours shall be based on metered energy delivered by Austin Energy’s electric system and the metered energy consumed from an on-site solar system; also known as, the total metered energy consumption during the billing month. All non-kWh based charges set out in the underlying service rate schedules shall remain unaffected by the application of this rider.~~

For each billing month, the Solar Customer shall receive a non-refundable, non-transferable credit equal to the metered kilowatt-hour output of the customer’s photovoltaic system multiplied by the ~~current applicable Value-of-Solar rate~~Value-of-Solar rate that corresponds with the customer’s rate-schedule type and the nameplate capacity of the customer’s photovoltaic system, as shown in the table below.

For each billing month, the Shared Solar Customer shall receive a non-refundable, non-transferable credit equal to the customer’s proportional amount of the metered kilowatt-hour output of the designated photovoltaic system multiplied by the current applicable Value-of-Solar rate.

Credits are applicable to the customer’s total monthly bill for electric service in the customer’s name on the same premise and account where the on-site solar photovoltaic system is associated. ~~Any remaining credit~~The total amount ~~shall be carried forward and of credits applied as an offset to the customer’s next electric service bill; cannot exceed the total electric charges (before the application of the VoS credit) in that month. In the event that total credits exceed total charges, all remaining unused credits shall be tracked by Austin Energy and carried forward to future billing periods.~~ In the event of service termination, the customer will forfeit any remaining ~~credit balance~~unused credits, and the ~~credit balance~~credits will be applied ~~to the Power Supply Adjustment (PSA) as an offset to reduce net purchased power costs.~~PSA Costs.

The Value-of-Solar rates, methodology, and inputs will be re-assessed and updated during the budget process.

Customers receiving service under either Non-Demand or Demand Value-of-Solar Riders cannot combine services with the Load Shifting Voltage Discount Rider. Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) and all other renewable energy attributes for generation receiving Value-of-Solar credits are aggregated by Austin Energy. All RECs for energy consumed onsite will be retired on behalf of the solar customer.

Rate Schedule Type	Avoided Cost – recovered in	Societal Benefit – recovered in
	PSA (\$/kWh)	PSA (\$/kWh)
Non-Demand	\$0.0761	\$0.023

<i>Demand (Solar capacity less than 1,000 kW-ac)</i>	\$0.0761	\$0.023
<i>Demand (Solar capacity greater than or equal to 1,000 kW-ac)</i>	\$0.0494	\$0.023

Community Solar Rider

Austin Energy's Community Solar program provides residential customers with access to energy generated from a solar installation connected to Austin Energy's power system. Austin Energy's residential customers may subscribe to the utility's Community Solar program. Energy acquired or produced by Austin Energy cannot be directed to a particular destination on the ERCOT electric grid, including to a participant's premises. For participating customers, Austin Energy allocates and retires Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) from local solar assets to match a customer's subscribed level of energy usage. Under the Community Solar program, subscriber contributions support Austin Energy's purchases of power from local solar installations, which increases renewable power as a share of Austin Energy's overall generation mix. Support for renewable power is consistent with the community value of environmental stewardship.

Application:

Applies~~This rider applies~~ to any Residential Service account that subscribes to a community solar program,~~and, Subscription~~ is available on a first-come, first-served basis, until the program is fully subscribed. Once fully subscribed, no new customers will be allowed to take service under this rider until additional community solar projects ~~are~~ capacity is obtained, or an existing program's capacity becomes available.

If the program is open to subscribers, a customer may complete a Community Solar enrollment request form which is available at Austin Energy's website. If the program is not open to subscribers, a customer may complete the form to be added to the program's waitlist.

Current Community Solar assets include:

The Palmer Array (185 kW)

La Loma / Kingsbery (2.6 MW)

Austin Bergstrom International Airport (ABIA) Blue Parking Garage (1.8 MW)

Terms and Conditions:

~~Customer~~A customer's subscription must be for 100 percent of the customer's ~~monthly~~ energy usage. Customers may unsubscribe at any time; however, under Community Solar Rider a customer ~~that who~~ unsubscribes may not re-subscribe for Community Solar Rider for a period of 12 months. ~~Service under this rider is considered portable within Austin Energy's service territory, meaning that if~~Under the program, a customer's subscription follows the customer ~~subscribes at one premise and moves without regard to another; the location where the customer may remain a subscriber. Subscriptions support Austin Energy's inclusion of local community solar photovoltaic systems in its power generation portfolio.~~ takes electric service from Austin Energy.

Customers receiving service under the Community Solar Rider cannot combine services with the Value-of- Solar Rider or GreenChoice® Rider; ~~or participate in any time-of-use rates.~~

Discounts:

~~Eligible residential Customer Assistance Program (CAP) participants that subscribe to community solar qualify for a reduced~~ As shown in the table below, the Community Solar ~~Adjustment charge~~ power supply rate per kWh is discounted for CAP program participants.

Community Solar Charges:

While subscribed to the Community Solar program, a customer will be billed a Community Solar Adjustment in lieu of the standard Power Supply Adjustment ~~that would otherwise apply to.~~ Community Solar rates are currently frozen at the customer's subscribed energy usage levels shown below until September 30, 2033.

Subscriber Eligibility	Effective Date	Community Solar Adjustment (\$/kWh)
Residential Service	January 1, 2017	\$0.04270

<i>Residential CAP Participants</i>	<i>February 1, 2018</i>	<i>\$0.02770</i>
-------------------------------------	-------------------------	------------------

Load Shifting Voltage Discount Rider

Application:

Applies to any non-residential customer who, at a minimum, shifts 30 percent of the customer's normal annual monthly average on-peak billed demand using storage technologies (e.g., thermal energy storage) and whose point of delivery is located within the limits of Austin Energy's service territory. "Normal on-peak billed demand" is defined as the maximum-billed demand recorded prior to taking service on this discount rider rate schedule, and corresponding energy, during the last 12-month period, or as may be determined by Austin Energy.

Character of Service:

Service is provided under these rate schedules pursuant to City Code Chapter 15-9 (*Utility Service Regulations*) and the City of Austin ~~Utility~~Utilities Criteria Manual, as both may be amended from time to time, and such other rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the City of Austin. Electric service of one standard character will be delivered to one point of service on the customer's premises and measured through one meter unless, at Austin Energy's sole discretion, additional metering is required.

Terms and Conditions:

The Load Shifting Voltage Discount Rider rate schedule will be applied to the underlying rates within the standard rate schedules for which the customer's load and voltage would qualify. Customer shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and permit reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes.

The Billed kW used to determine the Demand and Regulatory Charges shall be based on the highest 15-minute metered demand recorded during the Load Shifting on-peak period and adjusted for power factor. The Energy Charge shall be based on all energy consumption during the Load Shifting on-peak period. For all other charges (PSA and Community Benefit Charges) the billing units to assess the charges are unaffected by the application of this rider.

The Load Shifting on-peak period load shall be shifted, not eliminated, nor replaced by the use of alternative fuels. There is no load forgiveness for operations during on-peak periods. Customers receiving service under this rate schedule are not eligible for any other forms of discounts; except for service to a facility owned and operated by the State of Texas or the Board of Regents of the University of Texas System. In addition, customers receiving service under Load Shifting Voltage Discount Rider cannot combine services with either Non-Demand or Demand Value-of-Solar Riders. For definition of charges listed below, see "Glossary of Terms" at the back of this tariff.

Load Shifting Periods

	Time Periods	Annual
Demand		
On-Peak	3:00 P.M. – 6:00 P.M.	Everyday
Off-Peak	6:00 P.M. – 3:00 P.M.	
Energy		
On-Peak	7:00 A.M. – 10:00 P.M.	Everyday
Off-Peak	10:00 P.M. – 7:00 A.M.	

Electric Vehicle Public Charging

Application:

This rate schedule applies to electric service to a customer using a public electric vehicle charging station under the Electric Vehicle Public Charging program. Charging on Level 1 and Level 2 charging stations is a fixed rate per kilowatt-hour dispensed by the charging station. Customers are incentivized to unplug and move the car within 30 minutes after charging is complete. The entire duration that the electric vehicle is connected to the charging station is referred to as “plug-in to plug-out.” Beginning 30 minutes after charging is complete, a per-minute fee for over-staying in a charging station’s parking spot (“Overstay Charges”) will be assessed until plug-out. To improve station availability for all members, DC Fast charging stations are based on a per-minute rate applied from plug-in to plug-out.

Character of Service:

Service is provided under these rate schedules pursuant to City Code Chapter 15-9 (*Utility Service Regulations*) and the City of Austin ~~Utility~~Utilities Criteria Manual, as both may be amended from time to time, and such other rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the City of Austin. Electric service of one standard character will be delivered to one point of service on the customer’s premises and measured through one meter unless, at Austin Energy’s sole discretion, additional metering is required.

Terms and Conditions:

Customers shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and permit reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes. All non-kilowatt-hour charges under this are unaffected by the application of any rider.

All Members:	
<i>Level 1 and Level 2 Charging (\$/kilowatt-hour dispensed)</i>	_\$0.0939709867
<i>Level 1 and Level 2 Overstay Charges (\$/minute)</i>	One-thirtieth of one dollar
<i>DC Fast Charging (\$/minute, plug-in to plug-out)</i>	_\$0.214222491

Pilot Programs

Application:

Each individual pilot program described in this section will be limited to a participation of 100 individual meters on a first-come, first-served basis, unless stated otherwise on the applicable rate schedule. At any time, Austin Energy may administratively suspend availability of these pilot programs or modify the number of individual meters allowed to participate.

The pilot Time-of-Use power supply rates will be applied to the underlying standard rate schedules for which the customer's characteristics, load, and voltage would qualify, but with the time-based power supply charge identified below in lieu of the power supply adjustment rates. All character of services, terms, conditions, and discounts from the underlying standard rate schedule apply, unless specifically modified by the terms of the pilot program.

Terms and Conditions:

Customers shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and permit reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes. All non-kilowatt-hour charges under these rate schedules are unaffected by the application of any rider.

Pilot program availability is contingent upon system configuration, availability of appropriate meters, and the customer's premise. Customers selecting these rate options are not eligible to participate in levelized billing. For information on rates (i.e., PSA, CBC, Regulatory Charge, etc.) prior to this effective date, please see corresponding schedules in this tariff (if applicable). For definition of charges listed below, see "Glossary of Terms" at the back of this tariff.

Customers are advised to conduct their own independent research before deciding to participate in a pilot program.

At Austin Energy's sole discretion, during extreme unforeseen circumstances, the customer may be allowed to prematurely stop receiving service pursuant to these pilots without being back billed or have the termination fee waived.

Residential Service

Application:

These pilot programs' rate schedules apply to electric service for domestic purposes in each individual metered residence, apartment unit, mobile home, or other dwelling unit whose point of delivery is located within the limits of Austin Energy's service territory.

Rider Schedules:

Services under these rate schedules are eligible for application of GreenChoice® Rider, Community Solar Rider, and Non-Demand Value-of-Solar Rider, unless stated otherwise on their applicable rate schedule. Application of GreenChoice® Rider and Community Solar Rider will be applied to all energy consumption in addition to applicable power and fuel charges. Customers receiving service under the Community Solar Rider cannot combine services with either the Non-Demand Value-of-Solar Rider or GreenChoice® Rider.

Time-of-Use Rate

Customers receiving service under the Residential Service rate schedule may choose the following time-of-use power supply charges in lieu of the normal power supply adjustment rates to be applied for a term of no less than 12 consecutive billing cycles. If a customer elects to stop receiving service pursuant to this rider before the conclusion of the initial 12 consecutive billing cycles, Austin Energy will calculate what the customer's bills would have been using the Residential Service Power Supply Adjustment rates. If the application of these rates results in a higher bill, the customer will be back billed for difference between this higher amount and the amount paid pursuant to this rider.

Power Supply Periods:

Weekdays	
<i>Off-Peak</i>	10:00 P.M. – 7:00 A.M.
<i>Mid-Peak</i>	7:00 A.M. – 3:00 P.M., 6:00 P.M. – 10:00 P.M.
<i>On-Peak</i>	3:00 P.M. – 6:00 P.M.
Weekends	
<i>Off-Peak</i>	Entire Day

Time-of-Use Power Supply Charges

Power Supply Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Weekdays</i>		
	<i>Off-Peak</i>	\$0. 03459 <u>02677</u>
	<i>Mid-Peak</i>	\$0. 05322 <u>04118</u>
	<i>On-Peak</i>	\$0. 10910 <u>08442</u>
<i>Weekends</i>		
	<i>Off-Peak</i>	\$0. 03459 <u>02677</u>

EV360SM Plug-In Electric Vehicle Charging Subscription (This rate is closed to new customers)

Application:

For a separate residential meter circuit, installed at the customer's expense, attached to an in-home electric vehicle level 1, or higher, charging station for charging a plug-in electric vehicle (PEV).

Customers receiving service under this rate schedule may choose the following electric vehicle subscription charge to be applied for a term of no less than 12 consecutive billing cycles. If the customer elects to terminate participation in the program, the customer must pay an early termination fee of \$200.00. This rate schedule includes unlimited customer access to public electric vehicle charging stations under the Electric Vehicle Public Charging rate schedule.

Terms and Conditions:

These charges are in addition to any other services the premise might be receiving. Customers served under this rate schedule will be provided separate primary meter billing amounts and PEV meter billing amounts in their electric bills. The customer's primary metered usage is billed according to the primary rate schedule

selected by the customer. The customer's PEV usage is billed according to this residential PEV schedule. The PEV meter billed amount will be based upon data delivered to Austin Energy.

All in-home electric vehicle charging must be done during off-peak periods; otherwise, any energy consumption during on-peak periods will be multiplied by Power Supply Charges.

A one-time enrollment fee of \$150 will be applied.

Customers receiving PEV charging station service are not eligible for any discounts under this rate schedule. Application of GreenChoice® Rider and Community Solar Rider will be applied to all energy consumption from the PEV meter in addition to Power Supply Charges.

Time Periods:

Weekdays	
<i>Off-Peak</i>	7:00 P.M. – 2:00 P.M.
<i>On-Peak</i>	2:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M.
Weekends	
<i>Off-Peak</i>	Entire Day

PEV Charging Station Charges

	Summer (June through September)	Non-Summer (October through May)
Basic Charges (\$/month)		
<i>Delivery</i>		
<i>Demand (< 10 kW)</i>	\$30.00	\$30.00
<i>Demand (≥ 10 kW)</i>	\$50.00	\$50.00
Power Supply Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Weekdays</i>		
<i>Off-Peak</i>	\$0.00000	\$0.00000
<i>On-Peak</i>	\$0.40000	\$0.14000
<i>Weekends</i>		
<i>Off-Peak</i>	\$0.00000	\$0.00000

Commercial Service

Fleet and Public Electric Vehicle Charging

Application:

This rate schedule applies to secondary voltage electric service to a single metered point of delivery with a load at least 90 percent attributable to electric vehicle charging, as verified by Austin Energy, with an average monthly billed demand greater than 100 kW over the previous ~~6~~six billing months, or as determined by Austin Energy for accounts with a billing history of less than ~~6~~six months. Participation is limited to ten customers, on a first-come, first-served basis.

A customer receiving service under this schedule may elect to take service under the applicable standard rate schedule but only after receiving service on this schedule for 12 consecutive billing months. If a customer elects to discontinue service under this schedule, the customer will not be permitted to return to this schedule for a period of one year. This program supports high usage applications of charging for public facing charging infrastructure and facilities serving fleet, bulk, and delivery electric vehicles; transit, commuter, and school buses; and other ground transportation equipment and vehicles.

Character of Service:

Service is provided under these rate schedules pursuant to City Code Chapter 15-9 (*Utility Service Regulations*) and the City of Austin ~~Utility~~Utilities Criteria Manual, as both may be amended from time to time, and such other rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the City of Austin. Electric service of one standard character will be delivered to one point of service on the customer's premises and measured through one meter unless, at Austin Energy's sole discretion, additional metering is permitted.

Terms and Conditions:

The customer shall own, maintain, and operate all facilities and equipment on the customer's side of the point of delivery. Customers shall permit Austin Energy to install all equipment necessary for metering and permit reasonable access to all electric service facilities installed by Austin Energy for inspection, maintenance, repair, removal, or data recording purposes. All non-kilowatt-hour charges under this schedule are unaffected by the application of any rider.

For the purpose of this schedule, all demand for power in kilowatts (kW) is referred to as "Billed kW" and shall be measured as the metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest use during the billing month as determined by Austin Energy's metering equipment and adjusted for power factor corrections.

When power factor during the interval of greatest use is less than 90 percent, as determined by metering equipment installed by Austin Energy, the Billed kW shall be determined by multiplying metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest use by a 90 percent power factor divided by the recorded power factor, rounded to the nearest hundredth, during the interval of greatest use. For example, the metered kilowatt demand during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest monthly use is 13.5 kW, and the power factor during the ~~fifteen~~15-minute interval of greatest monthly use is 86.7 percent; therefore, the Billed kW equals 14.0 kW (13.5 kW x 0.90 / 0.87 power factor).

For information on other applicable rates (i.e., PSA, CBC, Regulatory Charge, etc.) please see corresponding schedules in this tariff (if applicable). For definition of charges listed below, see "Glossary of Terms" at the back of this tariff.

	Inside City Limits	Outside City Limits
Basic Charges		
<i>Customer (\$/month)</i>	\$841.50 <u>\$883.58</u>	\$841.50 <u>\$883.58</u>
Demand Charges (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$12.48 <u>\$13.10</u>	\$12.48 <u>\$13.10</u>
Energy Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.00000	\$0.00000
Power Supply Adjustment Charge (\$/kWh)		
<i>Billed kWh</i>	\$0.05322 <u>\$0.04118</u>	\$0.05322 <u>\$0.04118</u>
Community Benefit Charges (\$/kWh)		
<i>Customer Assistance Program</i>	\$0.00187 <u>\$0.00237</u>	\$0.00187 <u>\$0.00237</u>
<i>Service Area Lighting</i>	\$0.00206 <u>\$0.00254</u>	\$0.00000
<i>Energy Efficiency Services</i>	\$0.00349 <u>\$0.00457</u>	\$0.00349 <u>\$0.00457</u>
Regulatory Charge (\$/kW)		
<i>Billed kW</i>	\$3.73	\$3.73

State of Texas Contract Service

Beginning June 1, 2017, this rate schedule applies to service to a facility owned and operated by the State of Texas or the Board of Regents of the University of Texas System (collectively “State”) that receives service at secondary or primary voltages with a demand equal to or greater than 500 kilowatts. A State account may be included under the service contract if 1) it qualifies for service under the Large Service Contract schedule on May 31, 2017; or 2) at the start of the first billing month after it has reached a monthly peak demand of at least 500 kW twice during the preceding 12 billing months.

Contract Term:

To receive service under this rate schedule, the State must enter into an exclusive sole supplier service contract to purchase its entire bundled electric service requirements within Austin Energy’s service area, with an exception for on-site back-up generation and up to one megawatt of on-site renewable generation capacity or entirety self-generation for standby rates. The contract term shall run from June 1, 2017, through the billing month that includes August 31, 2026. The City Manager or his designee may establish and agree to terms and conditions for a service contract consistent with this rate schedule.

Block Power Supply Pricing:

In lieu of the Power Supply Adjustment, the State’s service contract may provide a fixed power supply charge for a monthly block quantity of energy for a defined term, based on the cost of wholesale power market prices. Block pricing is contingent on the availability of authorized funding and the State’s satisfaction of credit requirements. All billed energy not subject to block pricing is subject to the variable Power Supply Adjustment (or GreenChoice® rider), as may be amended from time to time, or any other successor power or fuel adjustment schedules.

The kWh block price shall be the actual wholesale kWh cost to Austin Energy of the block quantity supplied, plus a renewable portfolio charge based upon the forecast kWh price of renewable energy credits in the ERCOT market during the term of the block pricing.

In lieu of the renewable portfolio charge, the State may opt to designate an equal renewable portfolio dollar value as a monthly block quantity of GreenChoice® energy by paying the per-kWh price difference between the wholesale power price paid by Austin Energy and the applicable GreenChoice® Charge for the specified quantity.

Community Benefit Charges:

Rebates received by the State for energy efficiency measures may be applied at the State’s option as a reduction to the monthly electric bill for the facility that implemented the measures. The State’s service contract may provide for additional engineering and staff support from Austin Energy for the identification of energy efficiency projects at State facilities. Charges for Service Area Lighting (SAL) and Customer Assistance Program (CAP) do not apply to service under this rate schedule.

Terms and Conditions:

This schedule is effective through the end of the State’s billing month that includes August 31, 2026. Austin Energy may provide service under this schedule as a bundled entity or, if retail deregulation is implemented in its service area, as separate, unbundled entities. Dual Feed Service charges are not applicable to a facility receiving service under this rate schedule within the capacity utilization requirements provided in the Austin Energy Fee Schedule.

If the State is required by state or federal law to act in a manner inconsistent with the terms of this rate schedule or its service contract, then the State may upon prior written notice to Austin Energy cancel, or modify in whole or in part, this Service Contract as necessary to comply with state or federal law.

For purposes of this rate schedule the State does not include a conservation and reclamation district created pursuant to Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution. The State may opt to terminate its service contract if the City adopts a rate schedule that offers more favorable rates, terms, or conditions than provided by this rate schedule and that describes a customer class for which the State's secondary or primary voltage service accounts qualify. The State may exercise this option by providing written notice of its intent to Austin Energy and by executing the written agreement, if any, required to receive service under the new tariff.

Standard Rates:

Basic, energy, demand, and applicable Community Benefits Charges will be fixed for the initial service contract period ending August 31, 2021, as set forth in Ordinance No. 20160829-004. The Austin City Council may amend these charges to be fixed for the period September 1, 2021, through August 31, 2023, and again for the period September 1, 2023, through August 31, 2026. The PSA charge will be set in accordance with the appropriate rate schedule.

If, during the initial service contract period ending August 31, 2021, the City Council adopts new base electric rates for State accounts receiving service contract at secondary, primary, or transmission voltages based on a comprehensive cost-of-service study, the State may opt to have its contract rates adjusted to any new rate for which an account would qualify during the initial contract term.

Regulatory Charge will remain fixed for the initial contract period ending August 31, 2021. For the periods of September 1, 2021, through October 31, 2023, and September 1, 2023, through August 31, 2026, the regulatory charge will be reset and fixed in accordance with the regulatory charge schedule, plus an adjustment for any over- or under-recovery of Regulatory Charge from the previous contract period. The regulatory charge may be adjusted during any two-year period if an over-recovery of more than 110 percent or an under-recovery of less than 90 percent of costs occurs. Regulatory Charges may vary in accordance with executed contracts.

Solar Standard Offer Rider—Solar Integrator

Application:

This rate schedule applies to a solar photovoltaic (PV) system with a capacity less than 10,000 kW ~~—at~~ **alternating current as measured at the inverter's output**, interconnected with Austin Energy's distribution system ("Solar Integrator"), that (a) exports power to Austin Energy, (b) is not already taking service under another solar rate schedule, including but not limited to the *Value of Solar Rider*, (c) has submitted and obtained Austin Energy approval of a service application under this schedule, and (d) has submitted and obtained an approved interconnection agreement from Austin Energy. For information on the program and to submit an application and interconnection agreement, please visit Austin Energy's website.

All Renewable Energy Credits and all other renewable-energy attributes accruing under this schedule shall be aggregated and retired by Austin Energy.

Energy-export payment:

No less often than once every three months after the initial payment, Solar Integrator shall receive a payment (net of charges under the *Secondary Voltage—Demand less than 10 kW* rate schedule) equal to the metered kilowatt-hour output of the Solar Integrator's solar PV system that was exported to Austin Energy multiplied by the rate of payment that corresponds with the capacity of the Solar Integrator's solar PV system, as shown below:

Rate of Payment per Kilowatt-Hour of Energy Exported to Austin Energy	\$/kWh
<i>From a solar PV system with capacity less than one megawatt</i>	<i>\$.1124</i>
<i>From a solar PV system with capacity greater than or equal to one megawatt</i>	<i>\$.0841</i>

Electric Service

Solar Integrator will take service from Austin Energy under the *Secondary Voltage (Demand less than 10 kW)* rate schedule, including but not limited to customer-related services, delivery and supply of power consumed by the Solar Integrator's solar PV system. Examples of customer-related services include metering, meter reading, bill rendering, customer records, customer accounting, customer service, and associated administrative and general expenses.

Service Connection Costs:

Consistent with City of Austin Code, costs incurred by Austin Energy to connect Solar Integrator to Austin Energy's distribution system will be directly assigned to Solar Integrator and will be collected directly from Solar Integrator in the form of contribution in aid of construction.

Interconnection Guidelines

The Solar Integrator shall comply with current City of Austin technical requirements for interconnection. The Solar Integrator shall obtain approval from the City of Austin before the Solar Integrator energizes the on-site generating system or interconnects it with the City of Austin's electric system. The Solar Integrator shall submit to the City a completed interconnection application form and signed interconnection agreement. The Solar Integrator is responsible for any costs associated with required inspections and permits.

Rate of Payment Update Methodology

Under the *Solar Standard Offer Rider*, Austin Energy pays Solar Integrator a rate per kilowatt-hour of energy produced, net of electric charges. The payment rate is based on (a) the line-loss adjusted estimated value of energy that the solar installation enabled Austin Energy to avoid purchasing from the ERCOT power market (energy component), plus (b) a component based on the line-loss adjusted estimated value of

the ERCOT transmission charges that the solar installation enabled Austin Energy to avoid (transmission component), plus (c) a component based on the line-loss adjusted estimated value of the ancillary services that the solar installation enabled Austin Energy to avoid purchasing from the ERCOT power market (ancillary services component).

Each year, an avoided cost of energy will be calculated based on the year's market value of the energy produced divided by the volume of energy produced. The volume produced includes energy from all solar installations on the system that take services under Austin Energy's solar tariffs, including but not limited to *Value of Solar* and *Solar Standard Offer Rider*. For each hour, ERCOT's day-ahead market price of a kilowatt-hour at the Austin Energy Node is multiplied by the solar production during that hour, and the sum of the year's hourly values is that year's total market value of the solar energy produced. The year's market value of energy is then divided by the year's solar production, resulting in a weighted average cost of energy during that year.

Each year, an avoided cost of ERCOT transmission charges will be calculated based on (a) for the year's months of June, July, August, and September, the average of the kilowatt-hours of solar production that occurred during each hour that contained the time of the ERCOT transmission system peak demand in that month, multiplied by (b) the sum of the wholesale transmission service access rates ("postage stamp rate") that were in effect on the date that the Public Utility Commission of Texas's "matrix" docket¹ was approved in that year, divided by (c) the year's solar production.

Each year, an avoided cost of ancillary services will be calculated based on (a) for each hour of the year, ERCOT's weighted average cost per-kilowatt-hour for regulation up, regulation down, responsive reserve, and non-spinning reserve services, multiplied by (b) kilowatt-hours of solar production in that hour, divided by (c) the year's solar production.

The energy, transmission, and ancillary services components are adjusted for energy losses, estimated based on information from Austin Energy's most recent line-loss study.

The initial levels of the payment rates shown above are based on the straight average of the energy, transmission, and ancillary services components calculated for fiscal years 2021, 2022, and 2023.

Every three years beginning in March 2026, the Rate of Payment for the *Solar Standard Offer Rider – Solar Integrator* shall be updated. For systems less than one megawatt the payment rate is set based on the straight average of the energy, transmission, and ancillary services components calculated for each of the most recent five historical years. For systems greater than or equal to one megawatt, the transmission component is excluded.

¹ For example, the "postage stamp" rate used to develop the initial value of the transmission component was approved in *Commission Staff's Petition to Set 2021 Wholesale Transmission Service Charges for the Electric Reliability Council of Texas, Inc.*, Docket No. 51612.

CITY OF AUSTIN – ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

Glossary of Terms

The purpose of this section is ~~for customers to have a better understanding of the~~define terminology ~~that is~~used within the electric industry this Tariff.

Adjustment Clauses

A provision in Austin Energy's tariff that provides for periodic changes in charges or credits to a customer due to increases or decreases in certain costs over or under those included in base rates.

Base Rate

That portion of the total electric rate covering the general costs of doing business, except for fuel, purchased power, and other pass-~~thru~~through expenses. Throughout the tariff, base rates refer to customer, electric delivery, demand, and energy charges.

Billed Demand

The demand upon which billing to a customer is based, as specified in a rate schedule or contract, metered demand or billed demand may be the metered demand adjusted for power factor as specified in the rate schedule. It may also be based on the contract year, a contract minimum, or a previous maximum that does not necessarily coincide with the actual measured demand of the billing period.

Customer

A meter, individual, firm, organization, or other electric utility that purchases electric service at one location under one rate classification, contract, or schedule. If service is supplied to a customer at more than one location, each location shall be counted as a separate customer unless the consumptions are combined before the bill is calculated.

Customer Charge

Customer Charge is a monthly charge to help Austin Energy recover the customer-related fixed costs that reflect the minimum amount of equipment and services needed for customers to access the electric grid. Such costs are billing, metering, collections, customer service, service drops, cost of meters, meter maintenance, and other customer-related costs; these costs vary with the addition or subtraction of customers. These costs do not vary with usage; therefore, it is appropriate to recover these costs in the Customer Charge, rather than Energy Charges.

Customer Class

The grouping of customers into homogeneous classes. Typically, electric utility customers are classified on a broad category of customer service: residential, general service (commercial), large general service (industrial), lighting, or contract. Some electric systems have individual customers (large users) with unique electric-use characteristics, service requirements, or other factors that set them apart from other general customer classes and thus may require a separate class designation.

Delivery (Distribution) Charges

The charges on an electric customer's bill for the service of delivering or moving of electricity over the distribution system from the source of generation to the customer's premise; sometimes referred to as Electric Delivery.

Demand Charges

That portion of the charge for electric service based upon the electric capacity (kW or kVa) consumed and billed based on billing demand under an applicable rate schedule. The cost of providing electrical transmission and distribution equipment to accommodate the customer's largest electrical load during a given period of time.

Demand (kW)

The rate at which electricity is being used at any one given time. Demand differs from energy use, which reflects the total amount of electricity consumed over a period of time. Demand is often measured in kilowatts, while energy use is usually measured in kilowatt-hours. The term "load" is considered synonymous with "demand."

Electric Meter

A device that measures the amount of electricity a customer uses.

Electric Rate

The price set for a specified amount of electricity in an electric rate schedule or sales contract.

Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT)

An independent system operator that schedules power for the region, which represents about 90 percent of the State of Texas's electric load.

Energy Charges

That portion of the charge for electric service based upon the electric energy consumed or billed. Electrical energy is usually measured in kilowatt-hours (kWh), while heat energy is usually measured in British thermal units (Btu).

Energy Efficiency Programs

Programs sponsored by utilities or others specifically designed to achieve energy efficiency improvements. Energy efficiency improvements reduce the energy used by specific end- use devices and systems, typically without affecting the services provided. These programs reduce overall electricity consumption. Such savings are generally achieved by substituting technically more advanced equipment to produce the same level of end-use services (e.g. lighting, heating, motor drive) with less electricity. Examples include high-efficiency appliances, efficient lighting programs, high-efficiency heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) systems or control modifications, efficient building design, advanced electric motor drives, and heat recovery systems.

Energy Efficiency Service Charge

Charge assessed to customers to offset the cost of energy efficiency program services offered by Austin Energy.

Fuel or Power Supply Adjustment (PSA)

A rate schedule that provides for an adjustment to the customer's bill for the cost of power supply.

Green Pricing (GreenChoice)

An optional Austin Energy service that allows customers an opportunity to support a greater level of Austin Energy's investment in and/or purchase of power from renewable energy technologies. Participating customers pay a premium on their electric bill to cover the incremental cost of the additional renewable energy.

Inverted Rate Design

A rate design for a customer class for which the unit charge for electricity increases as usage increases.

Kilowatt-hour (kWh)

The basic unit of electric energy equal to one kilowatt of power supplied to or taken from an electric circuit steadily for one hour. One kilowatt-hour equals 1,000 watt-hours. The number of kWhs is used to determine the energy charges on your bill.

Line Losses

On the feed path to the customer, some electric energy is lost to resistance and voltage transformations, referred to as "line losses." For ratemaking purposes, rates are adjusted to account for the relative degree of line losses to deliver power to the customer based on the voltage level of the customer's service.

Load Factor (LF)

The ratio of the average load in kilowatts supplied during a designated period to the peak or maximum load in kilowatts occurring in that period. Load factor, in percent, is derived by multiplying the kilowatt-hours in the period by 100 and dividing by the product of the maximum demand in kilowatts and the number of hours in the period.

Load Profile

Shows the quantity of energy used by a class of customers at specific time intervals over a 24-hour period.

Load Shifting

Involves shifting load from on-peak to mid- or off-peak periods. Popular applications include use of storage water heating, storage space heating, cool storage, and customer load shifts to take advantage of time-of-use or other special rates.

Megawatt (MW)

One megawatt equals one million watts or 1,000 kW.

Megawatt-hour (MWh)

One megawatt-hour equals one million watt-hours or 1,000 kWhs.

Minimum Bill

A minimum charge to a customer during the applicable period of time, which is typically the customer charge. A provision in a rate schedule stating that a customer's bill cannot fall below a specified level. A minimum charge is similar to a customer charge because it is designed to recover fixed costs of services such as meter reading, billing and facilities maintenance. Although this charge does not generally recover the full cost of these services, it does give the customer a price signal that these costs do exist.

Off-Peak

Period of time when the need or demand for electricity on AE's system is low, such as late evenings, nights, weekends, and holidays.

On-Peak

Period of time when the need or demand for electricity on AE's system is high, normally during the late afternoons and early evening hours of the day from Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

Peak Load Pricing

Pricing of electric service that reflects different prices for system peak periods or for hours of the day during which loads are normally high.

Peak Season Pricing

Pricing of electric service that reflects different prices for system peak seasonal periods.

Power Factor (PF)

The ratio of real power (kW) to apparent power (kVA) at any given point and time in an electrical circuit. Generally, it is expressed as a percentage ratio.

Power Factor Adjustment

A clause in a rate schedule that provides for an adjustment in the billing if the customer's power factor varies from a specified percentage or range of percentages.

Primary Voltage

The voltage of the circuit supplying power to a transformer is called the primary voltage, as opposed to the output voltage or load-supply voltage, which is called secondary voltage. In power supply practice the primary is almost always the high-voltage side and the secondary the low-voltage side of a transformer, except at generating stations.

Public Street and Highway Lighting

Electricity supplied and services rendered for the purpose of lighting streets, highways, parks, and for other public places, or for traffic or other signal system service for municipalities, or for other divisions or agencies of State or Federal governments.

Rate Schedule

A statement of the rates, charges, and terms and conditions governing the provision of electric service that has been accepted by a regulatory body with established oversight authority.

Rate Structure

The design and organization of billing charges to customers. A rate structure can comprise one or more of the rate schedules defined herein.

Seasonal Rates

Rate schedules that are structured for the different seasons of the year. The electric rate schedule usually considers demand based on weather and other factors.

Secondary Voltage

The output voltage or load-supply voltage of a transformer or substation. In power supply practice secondary voltage is generally the low-voltage side of a transformer, except at generating stations.

Single-Phase Service

Service where facility (e.g., house, office, warehouse) has two energized wires coming into it. Typically serves smaller needs of 120V/240V. Requires less and simpler equipment and infrastructure to support and tends to be less expensive to install and maintain.

Special Contract Rate Schedule

An electric rate schedule for an electric service agreement between Austin Energy and another party in addition to, or independent of, any standard rate schedule.

Standby Service

Service that is not normally used but that is available through a permanent connection in lieu of, or as a supplement to, the usual source of supply.

Tariff

A published collection of rate schedules, charges, terms of service, rules and conditions under which the Austin Energy provides electric service to the public.

Thermal Energy Storage (TES)

Is a technology that stocks thermal energy by heating or cooling a storage medium so that the stored energy can be used later for heating and cooling applications and power generation.

Three-Phase Service

Electric energy that is transmitted by three or four wires to the customer. Relatively high voltage customers usually receive three-phase power.

Time-of-Use (TOU) or Time-of-Day Rates

A rate structure that prices electricity at different rates, reflecting the changes in the AE's costs of providing electricity at different times of the day. With time-of-use rates, higher prices are charged during the time when the electric system experiences its peak demand and marginal (incremental) costs are highest. Time-of-use rates better reflect the cost of providing service, sending more accurate price indicators to customers than non-time-of-use rates. Ultimately, these rates encourage efficient consumption, conservation and shifting of load to times of lower system demand.

Value of Service

A utility pricing concept in which the usefulness or necessity of a service to a customer group replaces or supplements cost factors as a major influence on the rates charged to the group. In ratemaking, this means that the price charged reflects the service's value to the customer rather than its cost to the producer. Value of service need not equal the cost of service; for example, Austin Energy's Value-of-Solar is such a product.

Volt (V)

The unit of electromotive force or electric pressure analogous to water pressure in pounds per square inch. It is the electromotive force that, if steadily applied to a circuit having a resistance of one ohm, will produce a current of one ampere.

Watt (W)

The electrical unit of real power or rate of doing work. The rate of energy transfers equivalent to one ampere flowing due to an electrical pressure of one volt at unity power factor. One watt is equivalent to approximately 1/746 horsepower, or one joule per second.